
 
 

2004 - 2005 
 

 
 
 

HARROW COUNCIL 
COUNCIL SUMMONS 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ANNUAL MEETING 
Thursday 13 May 2004 

 
 

 





 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

COUNCIL SUMMONS 
 
 

 Law and Administration Division 
  
 Civic Centre 
  
 Harrow 
 
 

6 May 2004 
 
Dear Member 
 
I hereby request and summon you to attend the ANNUAL MEETING OF THE COUNCIL OF 
THE LONDON BOROUGH OF HARROW to be held in the COUNCIL CHAMBER at the 
CIVIC CENTRE, STATION ROAD, HARROW, on Thursday, 13th day of May 2004 at 
7.30 pm to take into consideration the following numbered matters and to pass such 
resolutions and to make such orders thereon as may then be determined. 
 

 



 
I. ELECTION OF MAYOR - ORDER OF PROCEEDINGS     

 
 1. ELECTION OF MAYOR:    
   
  To elect a Mayor of the Borough for the Municipal Year 2004/2005. 

 
[Local Government Act 1972:  Schedule 2, Paragraph 3(1)]  (Pages 1 - 6) 

   
 2. APPOINTMENT OF DEPUTY MAYOR:    
   
  To receive the Mayor’s intimation in writing of the appointment of a Councillor 

of the Borough to be Deputy Mayor. 
 
[Local Government Act 1972:  Schedule 2, Paragraph 5(1) and (2)]   

   
 3. APPOINTMENT OF CHAPLAIN:    
   
  To receive, the Mayor’s announcement concerning a Chaplain (as may be 

appropriate). 
 
(Note:  The Order of Proceedings for Item 1-3 above is attached as an 
appendix to this Summons.)   

   
 ________________________________________________________________________                 

    
 

II. ELECTION OF THE EXECUTIVE  
 
 4. APPOINTMENT OF THE LEADER OF THE COUNCIL 2004/05:    
   
  (Article 7 of the Constitution - “The Executive”). 

 
Paragraph 7.03 of Article 7 provides for the annual appointment of the Leader 
of the Council. 
 
(i) The Council is requested to agree the re-appointment of 

Councillor Foulds as the Leader of the Council. 
 
(ii) The Council is requested also to agree the re-appointment of 

Councillor Navin Shah as the Deputy Leader of the Council.  
 
For the information of the Council, the Groups have notified the following 
appointments- 
 
Group 
 

Leader Deputy Leader 

Labour  Councillor Foulds Councillor N Shah 
Conservative  Councillor C Mote Councillor D Ashton 
Liberal Democrat  Councillor Miss Lyne Councillor Thornton 

 
FOR DECISION   

   



 5. EXECUTIVE FUNCTIONS 2004/2005:    
   
Enc.  To receive the proposals from the Leader of the Council.   (Pages 7 - 10) 
   
 ________________________________________________________________________                 

    
 

III. PROCEDURAL 
 
 6. COUNCIL MINUTES:    
   
  To defer the Minutes of the Council Meeting held on 29 April 2004 until they 

are printed into the Council Minute Book. 
   

   
 7. CIVIC FUNCTIONS:    
   
  To receive any communications from the newly elected Mayor as to the Civic 

Functions for the Municipal Year 2004-05.   
   
 8. ANNOUNCEMENTS BY THE LEADER OF THE COUNCIL:    
   
  To consider any announcements as to the Authority’s business which the 

Leader of the Council requires to advise at this Council Meeting.    
   
 9. PROCEDURAL MATTERS AND MOTIONS:    
   
  (1) DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST:  To receive any declarations of 

interest by Members of Council arising from the remaining business for 
this Annual Meeting. 

 
(2) PROCEDURAL MOTIONS:  To receive and consider any procedural 

motions by Members of Council under the relevant Council Procedure 
Rules in relation to the conduct of the remaining business for this 
Annual Meeting of the Council.   

   
 ________________________________________________________________________                 

    
 

IV. ESTABLISHMENT OF COMMITTEES AND DELEGATIONS 
 
 10. ESTABLISHMENT OF AN AD-HOC AUDIT COMMITTEE:    
   
  RECOMMENDATION I:         OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  

(27 April 2004). 
 
(N.B. It is understood that there is consensus between the political groups that 
the Ad-hoc Audit Committee should comprise five Members and be 
designated as non-proportionate).  (Pages 11 - 20) 

   
 11. DETERMINATION AS TO THE SIZE OF COMMITTEES OF THE COUNCIL 

AND THE PROPORTIONAL ALLOCATION OF COMMITTEE PLACES:    
   
  (Local Government (Committees and Political Groups) Regulations 1990). 

 



To receive and confirm the Determination as to the proportional allocation of 
Committee places for the Municipal Year 2004-05 under the 1990 
Regulations. 
 
(A draft Determination based on the 2003/04 number and size of Committees 
of the Council has been prepared by the Borough Solicitor and advised to the 
political groups on the Council).  
 
FOR CONFIRMATION 
 
(Note:  The Determination as agreed would be utilised for the formal 
appointment of Committee memberships - see Item below).   

   
 12. APPOINTMENT OF MEMBERS TO COUNCIL COMMITTEES:    
   
To 
follow 

 To receive the nominations of the groups to Committee places in accordance 
with their proportional entitlements under the approved Determination and 
formally to establish Committees of the Council and their memberships for the 
Municipal Year 2004/05. 
 
FOR CONFIRMATION   

   
 13. APPOINTMENT OF CHAIRS TO COUNCIL COMMITTEES:    
   
To 
follow 

 To receive a proposal from the Leader of the Council as to the appointment of 
Chairs to Committees of the Council for the Municipal Year 2004/05 (further to 
Rule 1.1 (xii) of the Constitution’s Council Procedure Rules). 
 
FOR DECISION   

   
 14. TERMS OF REFERENCE FOR COUNCIL COMMITTEES AND DELEGATED 

POWERS:    
   
  On a proposal from the Leader of the Council to continue the existing 

arrangements as set out in Part 3 of the Constitution. 
 
FOR CONFIRMATION   

   
 15. DELEGATIONS TO OFFICERS:    
   
  On a proposal from the Leader of the Council to continue the existing 

arrangements as set out in Part 3 of the Constitution.  
 
FOR CONFIRMATION   

   
 ________________________________________________________________________                 

    
 



V. COUNCIL MEETINGS 
 
 16. DATES OF COUNCIL MEETINGS 2004/05:    
   
  (1)  SCHEDULED MEETINGS 

 
To note and confirm the dates of the Meetings of Council for the Municipal 
Year, as follows:- 
 

21 October 2004  
*  
24 February 2005 (Council Tax) 
21 April 2005  
12 May 2005 (Annual Council) 

 
The above dates were included in the Authority's Calendar of Meetings for 
2004/05 as approved by the Cabinet and circulated to all Members. 
(*Note: the 20 January 2005 reserved date is omitted, on the basis that the 
Council will agree to delegate fixing the Council Tax Base to Cabinet : item 18 
below refers). 
 
FOR CONFIRMATION 
 
 
(2)  EXTRAORDINARY MEETING  
 
Council is requested to approve that an Extraordinary Meeting be convened 
for 8.00 pm on Thursday 24 June, 2004, to receive a Recommendation from 
the Cabinet meeting on that evening (proposed to commence at 6.30 pm) on 
the adoption of a replacement Unitary Development Plan. 
 
FOR DECISION   

   



IX. APPOINTMENT OF REPRESENTATIVES ON OUTSIDE BODIES 
 
 17. OUTSIDE BODY APPOINTMENTS 2004/05:    
   
To 
follow 

 To receive proposals from the Groups as to the appointment of 
representatives of the Authority to serve on outside bodies for the Municipal 
Year 2004/05.   

   
 ________________________________________________________________________                 

    
 

X. MISCELLANEOUS 
 
 18. CHANGES TO THE COUNCIL'S CONSTITUTION:    
   
  Report of the Chief Executive.  (Pages 21 - 48) 
   

 
Yours sincerely 
 

 
 
Borough Solicitor 

 
To: His Worship the Mayor and all Members of the Council of the London Borough 

of Harrow 
 
 
 
 



 
 

ITEMS 1-3 
 
 

ANNUAL COUNCIL 
13 MAY 2004 

 
 
 
 

ORDER OF PROCEEDINGS 
ELECTION OF MAYOR 

Agenda Item 1
Pages 1 to 6

1



2

This page is intentionally left blank



PERCNCL/Council 13.05.04/order of proceedings/1 

 
 
 Items 1-3 of the 
 Council Summons 

 
 

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARROW 
 

ORDER OF PROCEEDINGS 
 

AT 
 

ANNUAL MEETING OF THE COUNCIL OF THE 
LONDON BOROUGH OF HARROW, TO BE HELD 

ON THURSDAY 13 MAY 2004 AT 7.30 P.M. 
IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBER 

AT THE CIVIC CENTRE, STATION ROAD, HARROW 
 

OPENING OF THE ANNUAL MEETING 
 

 
By approximately 7.25 pm Members’ guests will have occupied the seats reserved for them in 
the Council Chamber or Public Gallery.  By no later than 7.28 pm the Councillors of the London 
Borough of Harrow will have assumed their places in the Council Chamber seats assigned to 
them. 
 
The Mayoress will have taken her place near the dais in the Council Chamber. 
 
AT 7.30 P.M. THE PROCESSION OF THE MAYOR will enter the Council Chamber in the 
following order:- 
 
 The Mayor (robed and wearing the Mayoral Chain and Medallion of Office), preceded by 

the Mace; 
 
 The Mayor’s Chaplain. 
 
 The Deputy Mayor (robed and wearing Medallion of Office); 
 
  
THE MACE-BEARER  will then announce:  “Members of the Council of the London Borough of 
Harrow, pray silence for the Worshipful the Mayor” 
 
[ALL STAND] 
 
THE MAYOR, the Deputy Mayor and the Mayor’s Chaplain will then proceed to their 

chairs on the dais where they will take up standing positions.  (Meanwhile 
the Mace will be placed horizontally in repose in front of the Mayor). 

 
THE CHAPLAIN will open the meeting with prayers. 
 
The Chaplain will then either withdraw or occupy a seat alongside the dais. 
 
THE MAYOR will then invite Members to be seated. 
 
[ALL  SIT] 

3



PERCNCL/Council 13.05.04/order of proceedings/2 

ITEM 1 
OF 
SUMMONS 
 

ELECTION OF MAYOR 
 

 THE MAYOR will call for nominations for the Office of Mayor for the Municipal Year 
2004/2005. 

 
 COUNCILLOR MRS CHAMPAGNIE will be nominated by Councillor MRS BATH and 

seconded by Councillor JOHN NICKOLAY.   
 
 PROPOSERS AND SECONDERS may make speeches in putting forward nominations,  
  and any other Members may speak in support thereof. 
 
 THE MAYOR will put the nominations, in the order in which they are made, to the meeting

 (the vote on each separate nomination will be by the show of hands). 
 
 NOTE: In the case of an equality of votes, the Mayor (or if the Mayor is not present, the 

person presiding at the meeting) is required by law to give a casting vote. 
 
 THE MAYOR will declare the successful candidate to be duly elected Mayor of the London 

Borough of Harrow for the ensuing Municipal Year. 
 
 THE RETIRING MAYOR will ask the Council to stand and thereupon vacate the Chair. 
 
 [ALL STAND] 
 
 PRECEDED by the Mace the retiring Mayor, the newly-elected Mayor, the retiring 

Deputy Mayor (if not the newly-elected Mayor), the Proposer and Seconder of the 
Mayor’s nomination, will leave the Council Chamber. 

 
 [ALL SIT] 
 
 After a short interval, the Mayor’s procession will return to the Council Chamber in the 

following order:- 
 
 The newly-elected Mayor  (robed and wearing Mayoral Chain and Medallion of 

Office), preceded by the Mace; 
 
 The retiring Mayor;  
 
 The retiring Deputy Mayor (if not the newly-elected Mayor); and 
 
 The Proposer and Seconder. 
 
 THE MACE-BEARER  will announce:  “Members of the Council of the London Borough of 

Harrow, pray silence for the Worshipful the Mayor”. 
 
 [ALL STAND] 
 
 MEMBERS of the Council and others present will stand in their places and so 

remain until the Mayor has taken the declaration of Acceptance of Office 
before the Borough Solicitor. 

 

4



PERCNCL/Council 13.05.04/order of proceedings/3 

 
 THE MAYOR will mount the dais and remain standing by the Mayoral Chair, and the 

Retiring Mayor will also mount the dais and remain standing by the 
Deputy Mayor’s Chair.  The retiring Deputy Mayor (if not the newly-elected 
Mayor) will take their seat in the Chamber. 

 
 (In the meantime, the Mace will be placed horizontally in repose in front of 

the Mayor). 
 
The Proposer and Seconder will, after bowing to the Mayor, return to their places. 
 
 
THE BOROUGH SOLICITOR will then administer the Declaration of Acceptance of Office by 
the Mayor, who will sign the same. 
 
 
THE MAYOR will invite Members to be seated. 
 
 
[ALL SIT] 
 
 
THE RETIRING MAYOR will officially hand to the new Mayor the Keys of the Corporate Seal. 
 
[(PRESENTATION of Bouquet to a Lady Mayor)] 
 

 THE RETIRING MAYORESS (Mrs S Dharmarajah) will invest the incoming Mayoress/Mayor's 
Consort with her/his Medallion of Office.  
 
 
[PRESENTATION of  Bouquet to the Mayoress/Button-hole flower to the Consort]. 
 
 
THE ELECTED MAYOR will then return thanks. 
 
 

VOTE OF THANKS TO RETIRING MAYOR 
 
 

TO BE MOVED BY COUNCILLOR  TOMS  
 
Seconded by COUNCILLOR  CURRIE 
 
 
THE RETIRING MAYOR will return thanks. 
 
 
THE MAYOR will present a replica of the Mayor’s Medallion to the RETIRING 

MAYOR (COUNCILLOR MANOHARAN DHARMARAJAH) in 
commemoration of his Mayoralty of the Borough 2003/2004. 

 
 
THE RETIRING MAYOR will then take his seat in the Chamber. 
 
THE MAYORESS/ 
MAYOR'S CONSORT 

will present a Medallion to the PAST MAYORESS (Mrs S. Dharmarajah) 
in commemoration of her year as Mayoress, 2003/2004. 

 
   

PRESENTATION of Bouquet to the past Mayoress. 
 
 

5



PERCNCL/Council 13.05.04/order of proceedings/4 

ITEM 2 
OF 
SUMMONS 
 

 
 

APPOINTMENT AND INVESTITURE OF DEPUTY MAYOR 
 

 
 
THE MAYOR will give written intimation (which the Borough Solicitor will read) of the 
appointment by the Mayor of a COUNCILLOR as the DEPUTY MAYOR for the ensuing 
Municipal Year. 
 
THE NEWLY APPOINTED DEPUTY MAYOR will proceed to the side of the dais, where the 

Mace-Bearer will invest him/her with the Deputy Mayor’s robe.  The newly-
appointed Deputy Mayor will then mount the dais.  The Mayor will invest him/her 
with the Deputy Mayor’s Medallion of Office. 

 
 (Members of the Council will remain seated throughout these proceedings.) 
 
[PRESENTATION of Bouquet or Button-hole flower to Deputy Mayor] 
 
THE MAYORESS will invest the DEPUTY MAYORESS / DEPUTY MAYOR’S CONSORT with 

her/his Medallion of Office. 
 
 
[PRESENTATION of Bouquet to the Deputy Mayoress/Button-hole flower to Deputy Mayor’s Consort]. 
 
 
THE DEPUTY MAYOR will return thanks for his/her appointment. 
 
PRESENTATION To ‘Flower-Children’: The Mayor will present a gift to each of the children 
who has assisted in the above proceedings at this Annual Council. 
 
 
ITEM 3 
OF 
SUMMONS 
 

APPOINTMENT OF MAYOR’S CHAPLAIN 
 
 

THE MAYOR will inform the Council of the appointee to be Chaplain and/or the 
arrangements for the Chaplaincy for the ensuing Municipal Year.   

 (As appropriate the Mayor’s Chaplain will take his/her seat on the dais.) 
 
 

REMAINING BUSINESS 
 
 

 The remaining business of the Council will then proceed in accordance with 
the Summons. 

 
 
 

___________________________________ 
 
 
 

6



 
 

ITEM 5 
 
 
 

ANNUAL COUNCIL 
13 MAY 2004 

 
 
 
 

EXECUTIVE FUNCTIONS 
2004/2005 

 
REPORT OF THE LEADER OF THE COUNCIL 

Agenda Item 5
Pages 7 to 10

7



8

This page is intentionally left blank



PERCNCL/Council 13-05-04(Annual)/jp-ann-cl-13-5-04 

 
 
LONDON BOROUGH OF HARROW ITEM 5 ON THE SUMMONS 
 
ANNUAL COUNCIL MEETING 
 
THURSDAY 13 MAY 2004 
 
 
EXECUTIVE FUNCTIONS 2004/2005 
 
REPORT OF THE LEADER OF THE COUNCIL 
 
(Rule 3.2, Executive Procedure Rules of the Constitution). 
(Article 7 of the Constitution – The Executive). 
 
The following information is required to be reported to the Annual Meeting by the Leader of the 
Council. 

 
 
(1) THE EXECUTIVE 
 

Paragraph 7.02 of Article 7 provides for the determination by the Council of the size and 
membership of the Executive (to consist of the Executive Leader (see Item 4), together with at 
least two but not more than nine other Councillors). 
 
The proposal as to the Members of the Executive and the allocation of portfolios is as follows 
(Rule 3.2, paragraphs (a), (b), (c), (d) and (e)):- 
 
 
Executive Member (Ward) Office/Portfolio Delegated Authority 

 
  (This remains unchanged: the 

existing delegations as set out in 
Part 3 of the Constitution continue).  
 

Councillor Foulds 
(Kenton East) 

Leader 
Strategy and External 
Affairs 
 

No change 

Councillor Navin Shah 
(Kenton East) 

Deputy Leader 
Partnership and Property 
 
 

No change 
 

Councillor Burchell 
(Edgware) 

Planning, Development, 
Housing and Best Value. 
 

No change 

Councillor Margaret Davine 
(Edgware) 
 

Social Services No change 

Councillor Dighe´ 
(Kenton West) 

Finance, Human 
Resources and 
Performance Management 
 

No change 
 

Councillor O’Dell 
(Marlborough) 
 

Environment and 
Transport 

No change 

9



PERCNCL/Council 13-05-04(Annual)/jp-ann-cl-13-5-04 

 
 

Councillor Stephenson 
(Headstone South) 

Education and Lifelong 
Learning 
 

No change 

Councillor Chris Mote 
(Pinner South) 
 

- - 
 

Councillor David Ashton 
(Belmont) 
 

- - 

Councillor Miss Lyne 
(Harrow Weald) 
 

- - 
 

 
FOR DECISION 
 
 

 
(2) EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE    (Rule 3.2, paragraph (f)). 
 

One (or both) of the two current Executive Committees may be re-established by the Cabinet at 
its meeting on 20 May 2004 with the same terms of reference from 2003/04. 
 

To The proposed memberships will be notified. 
follow 

 
 

(3) ADVISORY PANELS AND CONSULTATIVE FORUMS  (Rule 3.2, paragraph (i)) 
 

A range of Advisory Panels and Consultative Forums are proposed to be re-established by the 
Cabinet at its meeting on 20 May 2004 with the terms of reference unchanged from 2003/04. 
 

To The proposed memberships will be notified.  
follow 
 
 

 (4) DELEGATIONS TO OFFICERS  (Rule 3.2, paragraph (h)). 
 

The Council is referred to Item 15 of this Annual Meeting Summons. 
 
 

 FOR INFORMATION 
 

10



 
 

ITEM 10 
 
 
 

ANNUAL COUNCIL 
13 MAY 2004 

 
 
 
 

ESTABLISHMENT OF AN AUDIT 
COMMITTEE 

 
( OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

27 APRIL 2004: Recommendation I ) 

Agenda Item 10
Pages 11 to 20

11



12

This page is intentionally left blank



VOL. 11  OS 71

REPORT OF OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

MEETING HELD ON 27 APRIL 2004
    
    
 Chair: * Councillor Jean Lammiman 
    
 Councillors: * Blann 

* Mitzi Green 
* Ann Groves 
* Ingram 
* John Nickolay (5) 

* Marie-Louise Nolan 
  Osborn 
* Pinkus 
* Thammaiah 
* Versallion 

 * Denotes Member present 
(5) Denotes category of Reserve Member 

 PART I - RECOMMENDATIONS 

RECOMMENDATION I – Establishment of an Audit Committee

The Committee received a report of the Executive Director (Business Connections), 
which outlined proposals to establish an Audit Committee.  The report also set out the 
reasons for the proposals, options for the structure, and possible terms of reference for 
the Committee.  Officers envisaged that the proposed Committee would need to meet 
three or four times a year.  Members’ views on the proposals were sought. 

In response to Members’ questions, further information was provided on the role of the 
proposed Committee.  It was advised that the Committee would not only receive and 
consider the Council’s financial statements, but would also be involved in ensuring that 
officers were taking appropriate action in response to issues raised in audit reports.  An 
assurance was given that there would be no individual personal liabilities on Members 
of the Committee. 

It was noted that training for Members of the Committee would be provided, but the 
extent to which such training would be useful, given the complexity of the issues to be 
considered, was queried.  Officers suggested, however, that there was a need to 
differentiate between the role of the auditors and accountants who would report to the 
Committee, and that of the Members of the Committee who would be scrutinising 
auditors’ reports.  Though Members would be given a thorough grounding in the 
principles underpinning the issues under consideration, it would, to a certain extent, be 
a matter of using common sense to make sure that appropriate action was being taken 
in response to issues raised.  There would be a role on the Committee for Members 
both with and without accounting expertise. 

A Member was concerned that the Committee would still need advice from officers as to 
whether the responses to issues raised were adequate, and queried where that support 
would come from.  It was advised that Internal Audit would be providing significant 
support to the Committee, and Members were reminded of Internal Audit’s role of being 
independent and providing Members with an objective opinion. 

Members discussed the three options for the structure of the Committee.  With regard to 
the first option – to expand the terms of reference of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee to include the role of an Audit Committee – Members felt that the Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee already had a challenging workload, and would not have the 
capacity to take on additional functions, even if the proposed terms of reference were 
narrowed down.  Nor did Members believe that setting aside part of Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee meetings for audit matters was workable. 

With regard to the second option, the establishment of a Sub-Committee of the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee, some Members expressed concern about the 
membership of the Sub-Committee.  It was noted that Cabinet Assistants would be 
precluded from sitting on the Sub-Committee, as they would on any scrutiny body, and 
there was therefore concern that the membership of the Sub-Committee would have to 
be drawn largely from existing scrutiny Members, thereby increasing their workload.  
Although the Sub-Committee would not undertake review work like the other Scrutiny 
Sub-Committees, it would still place an additional burden on those scrutiny Members 
serving on it, due to the need to attend meetings and also undertake training.  It was 
pointed out, however, that there were currently only 7 Cabinet Assistants who would be 
debarred from sitting on the Sub-Committee.  In addition, the Chair suggested that the 

13



 OS 72 VOL. 11 OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY

establishment of a Sub-Committee would provide an opportunity to extend further the 
pool of scrutiny Members, by providing a role for Members not currently involved in 
either scrutiny or the Executive. 

There was also some concern that a Sub-Committee would increase the workload of 
the officers dedicated to scrutiny.  Officers anticipated, however, that the Committee 
would be directly supported by finance officers; any support from the Scrutiny Unit 
would be minimal. 

It was noted that the third option, a stand-alone Committee of the Council, would be 
able to draw its membership from a wider pool of Members, including Cabinet 
Assistants.  A Member queried whether individual Members of the Executive could also 
serve on such a Committee but it was advised that, while there were no statutory 
requirements that prevented this, there were some best practice issues, particularly 
around conflicts of interest, which made it undesirable.  It was also noted that the third 
option was not recommended by officers, as the terms of reference of the proposed 
Committee were consistent with those of the existing Overview and Scrutiny Committee.  
It would not be desirable for the functions of a stand-alone Committee to be duplicated 
by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee; if such a Committee were established, this 
might therefore impact on the ability of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee to look at 
corporate governance issues. 

It was agreed that there was a need for the Overview and Scrutiny Committee to give 
further consideration to the proposed terms of reference, whichever option was 
favoured.

Members were mindful that the authority to approve the statement of accounts had to 
be delegated to a Committee at Annual Council, as Council was not currently scheduled 
to meet again until October and there was a statutory requirement for the statement of 
accounts to be approved by the end of July.  A Member queried whether a temporary 
ad-hoc body could be established to approve the accounts, as had happened last year, 
and it was confirmed that this was possible.  Noting that this would enable the statement 
of accounts to be approved within the deadline but would also enable the Committee to 
give the proposed terms of reference further consideration, Members agreed that 
Council be recommended to establish an ad-hoc Committee with minimal terms of 
reference, as a temporary measure, and that this matter be brought back to the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee for further discussion.  Members were invited, 
however, to express a preference for one of the options at the meeting, and the majority 
of Members favoured the third option at that stage. 

Resolved to RECOMMEND:  (To Council) 

That an ad-hoc Committee be established with the following terms of reference: 

“To approve the Council’s Statement of Accounts”. 

REASON:  To improve the Council’s governance arrangements. 

(See also Minute 165). 

14



LONDON BOROUGH OF HARROW 
 
 
 

Meeting: 
 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Date: 
 

27 April 2004 

Subject: 
 

Establishment of an Audit Committee 

Key decision: 
 

No 

Responsible Chief 
Officer: 
 

Executive Director – Business Connections 

Relevant Portfolio 
Holder: 
 

Finance and Human Resources and Performance Management 

Status: 
 

Part 1 

Ward: 
 

All 

Enclosures: 
 

Appendix A: Overview and Scrutiny Terms of Reference 

 
 

1. Summary/ Reason for urgency (if applicable) 
 
1.1 This report sets out the reasons for establishing an Audit Committee.  The report covers 

the principles behind an Audit Committee, possible terms of reference, and options for 
the structure. 

 
 
2. Recommendations 
            

That the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 

i) Recommends to Council that the terms of reference of the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee are amended to incorporate the terms of reference set 
out in the body of the report at paragraph 5.5 

 
ii) Considers establishing an Audit Committee as a sub committee of the 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee with the terms of reference set out in the 
body of the report at paragraph 5.5 

 
REASON: To improve the Council’s corporate governance arrangements. 

 
 

15



3. Policy Context (including Relevant Previous Decisions) 
 
3.1 The Council’s external auditors, Deloitte and Touche recommended in their 2002-2003 

Annual Audit Letter that the council give consideration to the setting up of an Audit 
Committee. 

 
3.2 Overview and scrutiny Committee on 2nd March 2004 requested that a report be 

submitted to the next meeting on proposals for such a committee. 
 
4.  Relevance to Corporate Priorities 
 
4.1 The Council must have effective corporate governance arrangements in place to support 

the delivery of services. 
 
4.2 Corporate Governance is the system by which local authorities direct and control their 

functions and relate to their communities.  In the guidance for local authorities issued by 
SOLACE/CIPFA there are five dimensions to corporate governance: 
•  Community focus 
•  Service delivery arrangements 
•  Structures and processes 
•  Risk management and internal control 
•  Standards of conduct 
 

4.3 Corporate governance is very wide ranging and covers engagement with the public and 
other stakeholders as well as internal controls and procedures. 

 
4.4 An Audit Committee would have an important role to play in monitoring the Council’s 

governance arrangements and promoting good practice. 
 
5. Background Information and options considered 
 

Principles of an Audit Committee  
 
5.1 The CIPFA Code of Practice for Internal Audit (2003) includes a section on Audit 

Committees - it states that the main objective of an audit committee is to independently 
contribute to the organisation’s overall process for ensuring that an effective internal 
control environment is maintained.  With the requirement to make wider statements of 
internal control, audit committees are required to look beyond financial control matters 
such as safeguarding of assets, accounting and financial information, and instead 
provide assurance on the wider arrangements relating to all internal control activities. 

 
5.2 Within the public sector Audit committees are specifically precluded from having an 

Executive role.  This is set out in the Treasury’s Audit Committee Handbook (October 
2003) for all government departments and Executive Agencies but is applicable to other 
public sector bodies.  It also accords with the recommendations made in the Sharman 
Report and those of the Higgs and Smith reports.  This is further exemplified in the 
Learning and Skills Council’s (DfES) Guidance on the Internal Audit Code of Practice in 
its relationship with Further Education colleges and Sixth forms.  This is in contrast to the 
private sector, where an Audit Committee has a role, through the board, on behalf of 
shareholders. 

 

16



5.3 In the council responsibility for effective governance, including management of Internal 
Audit, financial regulations, financial reporting, risk management, and so on lies with the 
Executive.  An audit committee would provide 

 
•  Independent assurance of the adequacy of the risk management framework and the 

associated internal control environment within the authority 
•  Independent scrutiny of the authority’s financial and non-financial performance to the 

extent that it affects the authority’s exposure to risk and weakens the control 
environment 

•  Assurance that any issue arising from the process of drawing up, auditing and 
certifying the authority’s annual accounts is properly dealt with 

 
Terms of Reference of an Audit committee 

 
5.4 The existing terms of reference (T of R) for the Overview and Scrutiny Committee are 

attached at appendix A. 
 
5.5 In line with the principles outlined above, proposed terms of reference for an audit 

committee are set out below: 
 

•  To monitor the adequacy and effectiveness of the authority’s corporate governance 
arrangements including systems of internal control and its arrangements for risk 
management and make recommendations for change as appropriate (to replace 
existing T of R, f) 

•  To seek assurance that value for money is being achieved by the Council 
•  To approve the financial statements of the authority including the new Statement of 

Internal Control 
•  To consider matters arising from External Audit work which are required to be 

communicated to those charged with governance under the Statement of Auditing 
Standards (SAS610) 

•  To receive and consider the annual audit letter and make recommendations as 
appropriate (to replace existing T of R, k)  

•  To scrutinise/comment on the Internal Audit three year strategic plan and annual plan 
(to replace existing T of R, l) 

•  To monitor progress against the Internal Audit plan and receive summaries of audit 
work completed and key recommendations (to replace existing T of R, l) 

•  To scrutinise/comment on the External Audit plan 
•  To monitor progress against the External Audit plan and receive summaries of audit 

work completed and key recommendations 
•  To review the management response to audit recommendations and progress on 

implementation of recommendations 
•  To recommend action where audit recommendations are not being implemented 
•  To monitor the Council’s approach to tackling fraud and corruption and promote an 

anti-fraud culture  
 
5.6 The Account and Audit Regulations 2003 require the publication of a Statement of 

Internal Control with the financial statements from 2003/04 onwards.  The statement 
should represent the end result of a review of internal control and risk management, and 
include a description of the internal control environment, the review process, and any 
significant issues.  The body approving the statement should seek to satisfy itself that it 
has obtained sufficient, relevant and reliable evidence to support the disclosures made.  

17



Following approval the statement is signed by the Chief Executive and the Leader of the 
Council. 

 
Structure, Membership and Attendance 

 
5.7 There are three options for establishing a formal audit committee 

i) Expand the terms of reference of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee to include the 
role of an audit committee, and ensure that part of each meeting is set aside for audit 
committee business 

ii) Establish a sub committee of Overview and Scrutiny to deal with audit committee 
business 

iii) Establish a new committee 
 

5.8 Option 3 is not recommended as the role of an audit committee is entirely consistent with 
the role of the existing overview and scrutiny committee.  Furthermore this function 
should not sit with the executive. Under the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003 “the 
statement of accounts shall be approved by a resolution of a committee of the relevant 
body or otherwise by a resolution of the members of the body meeting as a whole” and 
under the Local Authorities (Functions and Responsibilities) (England) (Amendment) 
Regulations 2001 approval of the accounts is a function that must not be undertaken by 
the Executive.  Therefore, assuming that the Audit Committee undertakes this function, it 
cannot be part of the Executive. 

 
5.9 The views of Members are sought on options 1 and 2 in paragraph 5.7.  A sub committee 

would have the advantage that it would be easier to convene a special meeting if 
required. 

 
5.10 In order to implement the proposed terms of reference, full Council would delegate 

responsibility for approving the financial statements of the Authority to the Audit 
Committee. 

 
5.11 As explained above the audit committee will have a fairly wide ranging remit which 

extends beyond financial matters.  Therefore the Members should ideally be drawn from 
a range of disciplines.  Training on Audit Committee matters will be built into the Member 
development programme. 

 
5.12 The Audit Committee meetings should be attended by the Chief Internal Auditor and, as 

required, the External Auditor, and other officers. 
 
6. Consultation 
 
6.1 None required. 
 
7. Finance Observations 
 
7.1 The remit of an Audit Committee would cover both financial and non-financial matters. 
 
8. Legal Observations 
 
8.1 The report proposes the Council giving the Committee specific functions beyond 

overview and scrutiny.  When the Constitution was adopted, specific functions which are 
or cannot be Cabinet/Executive functions (other than development control and 

18



Standards) were allocated to General Purposes & Licensing Committee and, if agreed, 
this would be a change from that "division of responsibilities. 

 
9. Conclusion 
 
9.1 Members are asked to consider establishing an Audit Committee, either by expanding 

the remit of Overview and Scrutiny or by establishing a Sub Committee of Overview and 
Scrutiny. 

 
10. Background Papers  
 
10.1 NONE 
 
11. Author 
 
11.1 Myfanwy Barrett, Director of Financial and Business Strategy.  (020 8420 9252) 
 

19



 
Appendix A 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
Terms of Reference 
 
The overview and scrutiny committee has the following power and duties: 
 
a) to co-ordinate and manage the scrutiny function for the Council 
 
b) to develop a work programme for scrutiny in consultation with the Executive 
 
c) to develop and oversee protocols for reviews and referrals 
 
d) to have specific responsibility for policy development support and scrutiny of the civic 

budget, statutory plans as appropriate and major cross-cutting issues 
 
e) to examine the council’s performance generally, using information from Best Value 

implementation plans, Best Value Performance Indicators, the comprehensive performance 
assessment, and other performance management frameworks 

 
f) to examine the Council’s corporate governance framework and make recommendations for 

change as appropriate 
 
g) to be responsible for the use of allocated resources for scrutiny to support its functions 
 
h) to establish such sub-committees as it considers necessary to achieve effective scrutiny of 

the Executive and senior officers of the Council 
 
i) to review, make reports and make recommendations to the Council and/or the Executive in 

respect of any Council functions 
 
j) to consider, report and make recommendations on any matter affecting the area and/or 

those who live, work or travel through Harrow 
 
k) to receive and consider the Audit Management Letter and make recommendations as 

appropriate 
 
l) to receive and consider the Annual Plan and the Annual Report of the Chief Internal Auditor 

and make recommendations as appropriate 
 
m) to report to the Council annually on the work of the scrutiny function 
 
n) to conclude reviews promptly, normally within six months 
 
 
 
 

20



 
 

ITEM 18 
 
 
 

ANNUAL COUNCIL 
13 MAY 2004 

 
 
 
 

CHANGES TO THE COUNCIL’S 
CONSTITUTION 

 
REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

Agenda Item 18
Pages 21 to 48

21



22

This page is intentionally left blank



 1

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARROW 
 
 

Meeting: 
 

Annual Council  

Date: 
 
 

Annual Council 13th May 2004 

Subject: 
 

Changes to the Council’s Constitution 

Key decision: 
 

No 

Responsible 
Chief Officer: 
 

Chief Executive 

Relevant 
Portfolio Holder: 
 

Strategy and External Affairs 

Status: 
 

Part 1 

Ward: 
 

All 

Enclosures: 
 

Annex 1 Proposed changes to the call-in procedure 
Annex 2 – Anti fraud and corruption strategy 
Annex 3 – Terms of reference Licensing and General Purposes 
Committee  
Annex 4 – Speaking rights at Development Control Committee 
Annex 5 – Employment Procedure Rules 
Annex 6 – Statutory officer powers 
Annex 7 – Deputation procedure for committees 

 
1. Summary/ Reason for urgency (if applicable) 
 
1.1 This report seeks to obtain Member approval for a series of minor and administrative 

changes to the current Constitution.  
 
1.2 The main changes proposed to the Procedure Rules and Articles are to: 
 

! Make clear that education co-optees on Overview and Scrutiny can vote only on 
education matters (6.1.1.1); 

! Clarify the grounds for rejecting requests to call in decisions (6.1.1.1) 
! Enable the Leader or Deputy Leader to make a portfolio holder decision where the 

relevant portfolio holder is conflicted out (6.1.1.3);  
! Clarify the procedure for adding reports to agendas after publication (6.1.1.4); 
! Include prior approval telecommunication applications to those which are subject to 

speaking rights at Development Control Committee (6.1.1.5); 
! Allow extensions of time for speeches at the Council tax meeting (6.1.1.6); 
! Include rules relating to political assistants within the constitution as required by law 

(6.1.1.7); 
! Ban photography and taping at any Council meeting unless prior permission is sought 

and granted (6.1.1.8); 
! Allow the Borough Solicitor to cancel a meeting before and after the agenda has been 

issued (6.1.1.8); 

23



 2

! Change the access to information rules following a change in the law (6.3.1); 
! Deal with a number of minor administrative and housekeeping changes to the rules 

(6.1.1.2,  6.1.3.1, 6.2.3) 
! Change the rule requiring the Executive to consider reports from Overview and Scrutiny 

at the ‘next’ meeting to consider them at an ‘appropriate’ meeting (6.1.1.1.) 
! Clarify the procedure for deputations at committees (6.1.1.8) 
! Improve the effectiveness of decision making at Development Control Committee by 

requiring further training to be undertaken (6.1.1.9) 
! Restrict the items applicable to the Annual Council Meeting (6.1.1.11) 
! Clarify the effect of statutory provisions on the admission of urgent items to Council 

Meetings (6.1.1.12) 
! Qualify the content and order of business at Council Meetings to reflect accepted practice 

(6.1.1.13) 
 
1.3 The main changes proposed to the Allocation of Responsibilities are: 

 
! To ensure that decisions of the Personnel Appeals Panel are referred to Council for 

ratification if they impact on the budget or policy framework (6.1.2.2); 
! Making the changes needed to implement the Licensing Act 2003 (transfer of liquor 

licensing to the Council) (6.3.2); 
! Minor changes to Executive responsibilities (6.1.2.4 – 6.1.2.6); 
! Deal with a number of minor administrative and housekeeping changes to the allocation 

of responsibilities (6.1.2.1, 6.1.2.2, 6.1.2.3)   
! To incorporate the establishment of an Audit Committee  (6.1.1.10) 
 

1.4 The proposed additions to the Constitution are: 
 

! The anti fraud and corruption strategy (6.2.1.); 
! The protocol on Members use of Information technology (6.2.2); 
! Inclusion of the responsibilities of all statutory officers (6.2.4) 
! Standards Committee investigations procedure (6.3.3); 

 
 
2. Recommendations (for decision by Council) 
 
 
2.1 That the amendments to the Constitution detailed at paragraph 6 be 

approved and incorporated in the constitution 
 
2.2 That Council approve the amendment to the Members Allowances   
            Scheme for 2004/2005 set out in paragraph 6.3.4. 
 

REASON: 
 
To bring the Constitution up to date to reflect current practice and the law.  
To make a  minor correction to the Members Allowance Scheme for 2004/2005 

3. Consultation with Ward Councillors 
 
3.1 Not applicable 
 
4. Policy Context (including Relevant Previous Decisions) 

24



 3

 
4.1 The new Council Constitution was approved in its present form in September 2002. Changes 

in the law, policy and practice require changes to be made, and Members and officers have 
also made requests for changes to be made to various elements of the constitution now that 
it has been in use for some time. 

 
5.  Relevance to Corporate Priorities 
 
5.1 No direct relevance. 
 
6. Background Information and options considered 
 
The changes proposed fall into three categories:  
 
Category 1: those changes which have been requested by officers and/or Members, or which are 
required following decisions of the Council and impact on the existing provisions; 
Category 2: changes and/or additions which were identified for later implementation at the time the 
Constitution was originally agreed; 
Category 3: changes required by statute or other rule/policy. 
 
 
6.1. Category 1 (those which have been requested by officers and/or Members, or which are 
required following decisions of the Council which impact on the existing provisions) 
 
6.1.1 Changes to Procedure Rules (Part 4) 
 
6.1.1.1     Overview and Scrutiny Rules - the call-in procedure (Page 4F-17) 
 
The current rules do not make it clear that the voting co-opted members of the Lifelong Learning 
Scrutiny sub-committee may only call in decisions related to education matters. 
 
It is also proposed to clarify to basis on which call-ins are currently rejected. The wording is at 
Annex 1. 
 
The proposed addition to the rules is attached as Annex 1 and highlighted in bold italics. 
 
Page 4F-13 
Rules 16.1 and 16.2 will be amended to indicate that the executive will consider reports from 
Overview and Scrutiny committees at ‘an appropriate meeting’ rather than at the ‘next meeting’, and 
the time frames in the rules will be changed accordingly. 
 
6.1.1.2 Advisory and Consultative Procedure Rules  
 
Page 4E-6 
Sections 15.3 and 15.4 of these rules were inadvertently omitted in the original Constitution. They 
are identical to the Executive Procedure Rules 15.3. and 15.4 and should be inserted. Rule 15.5 
refers to the ‘Chair’, but this should read ‘the Borough Solicitor’. 
 
Page 4E-4 
Rule 11.2 needs to be amended to exclude Education Consultative Forum (which has its own rules 
for quorum). 
 

25



 4

6.1.1.3 Executive Procedure Rules - Decision making by individual portfolio holders in 
circumstances where there is a conflict of interest 
 
The Constitution (Executive Procedure Rules 6.2) currently provides that: 
 
If the exercise of an Executive function has been delegated to an individual Member or an officer 
and a conflict of interest arises, then the function will be exercised, in the first instance, by the 
person or body by whom the delegation was made…..’ 
 
This means that a portfolio holder decision which cannot be taken by the relevant portfolio holder 
must be referred to Cabinet.   In light of experience, and to ensure that Cabinet deals with the more 
significant issues affecting the Council, it is proposed that an amendment be made to the 
Constitution to enable decisions in such circumstances to be referred to either the Leader or the 
Deputy Leader for decision. This ensures that where an individual decision by the Leader cannot be 
taken due to a conflict of interest, the Deputy Leader may take that decision. 
 
It is therefore proposed that point 6.2 above be deleted, and a new paragraph 6.2 inserted to read: 
 
‘If the exercise of an Executive function has been delegated to an individual Member and a conflict 
of interest arises, then the function may be exercised, by the Leader or Deputy Leader.  In the case 
where an officer is unable to take a delegated decision due to a conflict of interest, and no scheme 
exists within the department which allows referral of that decision to another appropriate officer, that 
decision will be referred to the relevant portfolio holder, or the Leader or Deputy Leader.’ 
 
Page 4D-7 
The provision at 15.3 should refer to clear working days. 
 
6.1.1.4 Access to Information Procedure Rules   
 
Page (4G –2) 
 
Add the following text at the beginning of the paragraph 6 to clarify the position on adding items to 
the agenda. 
 
“ If there is a requirement to add an agenda item to an agenda after the statutory deadline for 
publication, that item may only be considered if the Chair agrees, by virtue of the special 
circumstances set out either in the report or on the supplemental agenda, that the item should be 
considered as a matter of urgency and specified in the minutes of the meeting.”  
 
This amendment should also be incorporated into other relevant procedure rules. 
 
Page 4G-11 
 
Paragraph 2 of this rule was included in the Constitution in error and should be removed. 
 
6.1.1.5 Committee Procedure Rules - Amendment to speaking rules for Development Control 
meetings (Page 4B-9) 
 
It is proposed to amend the rules as set out in Annex 4. It is proposed to extend the representations 
procedure to telecommunications determinations (which currently fall under the deputations 
procedure) to ensure that the Development Control Committee is consistent in the way it treats 
different types of application. 
 

26



 5

 
 
 
 
6.1.1.6 Council Procedure Rules 
 
A provision will be included that enables for the exceptional extension of time at the Council Tax 
meeting to allow for opening and seconding speeches on the budget for each main political group to 
be extended to a period of up to 15 minutes in total for each group. 
 
6.1.1.7  Officer Employment Rules 
 
It is proposed to clarify the rules relating to the number and appointment of political assistants within 
the Constitution. These are attached as Annex 5. 
 
6.1.1.8  Procedure Rules - general 
 
It is proposed that a Rule be incorporated within the Constitution to enable the Borough Solicitor to 
cancel a meeting both before and after the agenda has been issued. 
 
It is proposed to include a rule banning photography and recording of proceedings of the Council, 
any of its committees and Cabinet, without express prior authority in writing from the Borough 
Solicitor.  This is to ensure that the decision making of the authority is not impeded and that any 
taping or filming of proceedings is appropriately regulated and supported. 
 
The procedure rules relating to reserving at meetings (other than at Cabinet where reserving is not 
possible) state that: 
 
Reserve Members may attend meetings in that capacity only: 
 
i) to take the place of an ordinary Member for whom they are a reserve; 
ii) where the ordinary Member will be absent for the whole of the meeting; and 
iii) after notifying the Chair at the start of the meeting. 
 
It is proposed to include this Rule in the list of Rules which cannot be waived by committee, as the 
rule would lose its impact if it were to be routinely waived. 
 
All procedure rules will include changes to the rules on questions submitted to meetings by e-mail. 
Specifically, there will be a single reception address for e-mailed questions. The rule will make clear 
that no responsibility can be taken by the Council for questions which fail to reach the address 
advertised in time or at all. 
In addition, the question will be required to include the questioner’s personal name and address. 
This is to ensure that questions are not submitted by one person on behalf of another. 
 
All procedure rules will include clarification about the process for deputations, including the 
requirements for being a member of a deputation and requiring speakers at committee to have been 
a signatory to the deputation request.  The proposed changes are set out in annex 8. 
 
 
 
 
 
6.1.1.9 Development Control Committee 

27



 6

 
Cabinet on 20th April 2004 received the Planning and Development Plan 2004/5 to 2006/7, and 
concurrent with that, the following proposal is made to improve decision making at Development 
Control Committee: 
 
From a date to be specified in writing by the Chief Executive (which date shall be the completion of 
an initial course of Members’ training), membership of the Development Control Committee shall be 
restricted to Members who have completed the course of training and continue thereafter with 
training.  If any Member is not trained to a standard specified by the Chief Executive, s/he shall not 
be a Development Control Committee member, or if in membership, shall be replaced by another 
Member who satisfies the training requirements.        
 
6.1.1.10 Audit Committee 
 
Overview and scrutiny committee on 27th April recommended to Council the establishment of an 
Audit Committee and the terms of reference for this committee would be included in the constitution. 
 
6.1.1.11 Rules not Applicable at Annual Council 
 
Dealing with public and Members’ questions (Council Rules 12 and 13) and Motions (Rule 15) at 
the Annual Council Meeting is inappropriate to the occasion and not understood by the 
public/guests attending this civic evening.  It is proposed that these Rules be amended to make 
them non-applicable to the Annual Meeting, which had been accepted custom and practice until 
very recently. 
 
6.1.1.12  
 
An addition is proposed to be made to Council Procedure Rule 7 (Notice and Summons to 
Meetings) which will clarify that business that is not on the Summons can only be added if the Chair 
(the Mayor) in that statutory capacity agrees that the matter is urgent and specifies the reasons for 
then including the item on the agenda, which decision cannot be the subject of challenge by other 
Councillors.  This statutory power takes precedence over Rule 15.2 (Urgent Motions), which latter 
Rule will be cross-referenced with Rule 7 to that effect.  This will bring the Rules into line with 
existing practice and the law. 
 
6.1.1.13 
 
Council Procedure Rule 4.1 prescribes the items for and order of business for Ordinary Council 
Meetings.  It is proposed to retain the list of items but to add a provision which allows the Borough 
Solicitor discretion to include those items in the Summons in an order considered appropriate to that 
meeting for the efficient dispatch of the business. This would reflect existing practice. 
 
 
6.1.2 Changes to the Allocation of responsibilities (Part 3) 
 
Council responsibilities: 
 
6.1.2.1 Responsibility for appointments to outside bodies 

 
There is duplication in the current Constitutional rules.  The Council, at its Extraordinary  
Meeting on 28 May 2002 (Resolution 26), agreed that it should retain responsibility for 
appointments to Outside Bodies.  A consequential addition to the Council’s terms of reference  
and deletion from the Executive’s terms of reference was intended but overlooked. 

28



 7

 
6.1.2.2 Personnel Appeals Panel (Page 3-12). 
 
After  (c) add the following: ‘except insofar as these may have an impact on the budget and policy 
framework agreed by the Council, when the decision may not be taken by the panel, and must be 
recommended to Council for approval’.  

 
6.1.2.3 Officer scheme of delegation - Non Executive Decisions (Page 3-69) 
 
Point 3 headings should be amended to read ‘Delegated Decisions’, and ‘Urgent Delegated 
Decisions’ for additional clarity. 
 
Cabinet Responsibilities: 
 
6.1.2.4 The Executive (Cabinet) (Page 3-17) 
 
The threshold for Key Decisions is currently £100,000 revenue and £250,000 capital. These figures 
have not altered since the Constitution was approved in 2002. It is suggested that Council consider 
an increase in the current thresholds  to £xxxxx  for revenue and £xxxxxxx  for capital. 
 
Minor amendment to the Executive terms of reference are proposed in light of experience of using 
the Constitution: 
  
! Amend Cabinet and Leader terms of reference to enable the Leader to respond to consultation 

papers. 
 
! Amend the Executive terms of reference to include fixing the Council Tax tax base. 
 
! Clarify that the capital programme/capital strategy is approved and managed by the Executive 
 
! Enable the Portfolio holder responsible for property matters to make decisions to acquire, 

dispose of and lease property on the Council’s behalf up to the threshold for key decisions. 
 
! Clarify the terms of reference for Cabinet to show approval of the HRA rents as an executive 

function. 
 
6.1.2.5 Community Consultative Forum (Page 3-33) 
 
It is proposed to remove the requirement in paragraph 1. for minutes of the Forum to be submitted 
to Cabinet for information.  This was included in error as minutes are already circulated to all 
Members via the monthly Minute Volume. 
 
6.1.2.6 Education Consultative Forum – (Page 3-35) 
 
Point 8 states that the Vice Chair will be elected from Councillors, but the Forum has agreed that 
the vice chair will be from non-councillor members and they have requested the terms of reference 
be amended accordingly. 
 
6.1.2.7 Harrow Town Centre Strategy (Cabinet Committee) (Page 3-31) 
 
Cabinet agreed to establish this Committee on 20th April 2004. The terms of reference will be 
incorporated into the Constitution. 
 

29



 8

 
6.1.2 Articles of the Constitution (Part 2) 
 
6.1.3.1 Article 14.04. (relating to contracts) 
 
The provision in 14.04 that two officers sign contracts has never been enforced. It is suggested that 
the Constitution be amended to reflect the existing practice. 
 
 
6.2.     Category 2:  (Changes and/or additions that were identified for later implementation at the 
time the Constitution was originally approved) 
 
6.2.1 Anti Fraud and Corruption Strategy  
 
This new Strategy is recommended for inclusion in Part 5 of the Constitution.  The Strategy is at 
Annex 2. 
 
6.2.2 Protocol on Members’ use of Information Technology 
 
This was approved by Standards Committee in July 2002 and will be incorporated into the 
Constitution. 
 
6.2.3 Joint arrangements – Article 11 
 
The Article dealing with joint arrangements and partnerships should be updated to reflect changes 
in joint arrangements and the new partnership arrangements. 
 
6.2.4 Statutory Officer roles  
 
The statutory roles of each statutory officer (Head of paid service, section 151, monitoring officer, 
education, and social services) will be included in the constitution. In respect of the monitoring 
officer this will include a protocol regarding the use of his powers.  It is recommended that this 
information in included in part 3 of the Constitution. The statutory powers are set out at annex 7.  
 
6. 3. Category 3:   (changes required by statute or other rule/policy) 
 
6.3.1 Access to Information Rules  
 
Regulations have now been made under section 66 of the Local Government Act 2000. These 
provide for changes to the regime for exempt and confidential information. 
 
6.3.2 Licensing Act 2003 
 
The new Licensing Act requires changes to the terms of reference of the General Purposes and 
Licensing Committee and to the scheme of delegations (see annex 3). Further changes may be 
required in light of the implementation of this act, including the need for specific rules on 
deputations (similar to the special rules relating to planning and telecommunications 
determinations). 
 
6.3.3 Local determination procedures 
 
This procedure was approved by Standards Committee on 7th October 2003 and Council on 23rd 
October 2003, and will be incorporated into the Constitution. 

30



 9

 
6.3.4 Members Allowance Scheme 
 
Amendments to the Scheme were approved by Council on 26th February 2004 as part of the 
Council Tax report.  A decision was made to approve special responsibility allowances for members 
of quasi-judicial bodies. In error, the Chief Officer Appointment Panel and the Pension Fund 
Investment Panel were included in the list. Council is requested to remove these bodies from the 
scheme. 
 
6.4  Items for future consideration 
 
The Constitution should be kept under review to ensure it is reflecting the requirements of the  
Council and the law. A number of changes are proposed for future consideration and are listed  
for information: 
 
6.4.1 Protocol on planning and lobbying 
 
This requires updating in light of experience of its use and external advice. 
 
6.4.2 Scheme of delegation to officers 
 
The scheme was agreed without any change in 2002. Officers are preparing a full revised scheme 
and will bring it forward for Cabinet or Council approval (as appropriate) later in 2004. 
 
6.4.3 Contract Procedure Rules 
 
These procedure rules are currently being redrafted for approval by Council. 
 
6.4.4 Protocol on Members and commercial contracts 
 
Standards Committee have agreed that this protocol should be included in the Constitution as one 
of the raft of protocols within the Constitution designed to support Members and clarify legal and 
local rules.  
 
6.4.5 Financial Procedure Rules 
 
These are currently being redrafted for approval by Council. 
 
7. Consultation 
 
7.1 Nominees from the political groups have received this report and commented upon it. 
 
8. Finance Observations 
 
8.1 There are no financial implications arising from this report. 
 
9. Legal Observations 
 
9.1 The Local Government Act 2000 introduced the requirement that all Councils introduce a 

written constitution. Some of the provisions contained therein are legal requirements.   
 
10. Conclusion 
 

31



 10

10.1 Members are requested to approve the amendments set out in paragraph 6 above to take on 
board changes required by reason of policy, rule or statute, and that these be incorporated 
within the Council Constitution 

 
11. Background Papers  
 
11.1 Council Constitution. Anyone wishing to inspect the background papers should contact 

Alison Vydulinska on 020 8424 7629. 
 
12. Author 
 
12.1  

32



 11

 
Annex 1  - Proposed Changes to Call-in Procedure. 

 
 
22. Call-in 
 
22.1 Call-in is the process whereby a decision of the Executive, Portfolio Holder or Officer taken 

but not implemented, may be examined by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee prior to 
implementation. Overview and Scrutiny Committee may recommend that the decision 
taker reconsider the decision. 
 
For the avoidance of doubt, a decision may only be subject to the call-in procedure once. 
 

The process for call-in 
 

22.2 Any six of the Members of the Council can call in a decision of the Executive which has been 
taken but not implemented. Additionally, in relation to Executive decisions on education 
matters only, any six Members of the Council and the voting co-opted members on the 
Lifelong Learning Scrutiny sub-committee can call-in a decision which has been taken 
but not implemented. Only decisions relating to Executive functions, whether delegated or 
not, may be called in. 

 
22.3 Decisions of the Executive shall not be implemented for 5 clear working days following the 

publication of the decision(s) and a decision can only be called in during this period.  This 
Rule does not apply to urgent decisions (see Rule 23 below).  The notice of the decision will 
state the date on which the decisions may be implemented if not called in.  (See also 
Executive Procedure Rule 27.3). 

 
22.4 Call-in must be by notification to the Borough Solicitor in writing or by fax, signed by all six 

Members and voting co-optees requesting the call-in.  A request for call in by e-mail will 
require a separate e-mail from each of the six Members concerned. 

 
(Add to 22.5) 
 
The Borough Solicitor, in consultation with the Chief Executive, may reject a call-in request 
if, in their opinion, it fails to meet one of the grounds listed above, and if it is in any way 
vexatious, frivolous or otherwise inappropriate.  Examples include but are not limited to: 
 
! The cited grounds bear no relevance to the decision that is identified for call-in 
! The requisition cites grounds for which no evidence is produced in support 
! Those requisitioning the call- in signed the requisition before it was complete 
! The call in includes material which could be defamatory  
! The requisition is being used for improper purpose (e.g. to admonish an officer) 

33



 12

! Annex 2 – Anti Fraud and Corruption Strategy 
 

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARROW 
 

ANTI-FRAUD AND CORRUPTION STRATEGY 
 
 

INTRODUCTION 
 
1 This document details the Authority’s anti-fraud and corruption strategy.  It outlines: 
 
•  the Authority’s commitment to maintaining an anti-fraud culture and the respective roles of 

individuals within this 
•  the mechanisms in place to prevent, detect and investigate fraudulent activities 
•  where to go for further guidance 
 

POLICY 
 
2 The Authority is committed to accountability, and to maintaining an honest and open 

environment.  In so doing, it will take positive action against any identified fraudulent or corrupt 
activities, both within the Authority and outside.  This is applicable to members of the Council 
and its officers, and to the Authority’s dealings with other organisations and the public.  

 
3 In all its dealings the Authority will adhere to the Nolan principles, which are: 
 

•  Selflessness  Holders of public office should take decisions solely in terms of the public 
interest.  They should not do so in order to gain financial or other material benefits for 
themselves, their families, or their friends. 

 
•  Integrity  Holders of public office should not place themselves under any financial or other 

obligation to outside individuals or organisations that might influence them in the 
performance of their official duties. 

 
•  Objectivity  In carrying out public business, including making public appointments, awarding 

contracts, or recommending individuals for rewards and benefits, holders of public office 
should make choices on merit. 

 
•  Accountability  Holders of public office are accountable for their decisions and actions to 

the public and must submit themselves to whatever scrutiny is appropriate to their office.  
 
•  Openness  and Inclusivity Holders of public office should be as open as possible about all 

the decisions and actions that they take.  They should give reasons for their decisions and 
restrict information only when the wider public interest clearly demands.  Openness requires 
an inclusive approach, an outward focus and a commitment to partnership working. 

 
•  Honesty  Holders of public office have a duty to declare any private interests relating to their 

public duties and to take steps to resolve any conflicts arising in a way that protects the 
public interest. 

 
•  Leadership  Holders of public office should promote and support these principles by 

leadership and example. 
 

34



 13

4 Both members and officers of the Council have a duty to ensure that the Authority’s anti-fraud 
and corruption policies are implemented.  To help them do this they should refer to the 
Members Code of Conduct, the Code of Conduct for Council Employees, and Financial 
Standard 8 (Financial Irregularities).   

 
DEFINITIONS 

 
4 The following definitions, whilst not exhaustive, apply throughout this document: 
 

•  Fraud  The intentional distortion of financial statements to conceal the misappropriation of 
assets or property for personal gain or benefit of others.  Frauds may be perpetrated 
internally or externally, and may involve third parties. 

 
•  Corruption  Obtaining a benefit from a fraud executed for the direct benefit of a third party.  

This type of fraud involves collusion between two or more parties where a holder of public 
office gains some sort of payment, favour or gift, either personally or for a member of the 
family or close friend, in return for an action, or inaction, contrary to their normal duties. 

 
 RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
6 Different parties have a role to play in promoting and enforcing an anti-fraud and corruption 

culture.  These are summarised below.   
 
7 Chief Financial Officer  The Chief Financial Officer is responsible for the proper 

administration of the Authority’s financial affairs.  S/he is also obliged to report to Council and 
the External Auditor if the Council or one of its representatives makes, or is about to make, a 
decision which is unlawful, or involves illegal expenditure or a potential financial loss. 

 
8 Monitoring Officer  The Borough Solicitor is responsible for reporting to full Council in the 

event of any possible illegality coming to his attention. 
 
9 Managers  All managers are responsible for maintaining internal control systems and for 

ensuring that the Authority’s resources are properly applied in the manner, and on the 
activities, intended.  This includes responsibility for the prevention and detection of fraud and 
other illegal acts.  Guidance can be found within Financial Regulations and Standards. 

 
10 Staff  Each member of staff is responsible for his/her own conduct, and for contributing 

towards the safeguarding of corporate standards.  This will include such areas as declaration 
of interests, private working, whistleblowing, etc.  Guidance on these areas can be found in 
Financial Regulations and the Code of Conduct for Council Employees. 

 
11 Internal Auditors  Audit and Consultancy Services are responsible for the independent 

appraisal of control systems, and for assisting managers in the investigation of irregularities 
(see Financial Standards 8 and 12).  

35



 14

 
12 External Auditors  External Audit have specific responsibilities for reviewing the stewardship 

of public money and for assessing the adequacy of arrangements in place to prevent and 
detect fraud and corruption.  

 
13 Members  Each member of the Council is responsible for his/her own conduct, and for 

contributing towards the safeguarding of corporate standards, as detailed in the Members 
Code of Conduct.  
 
PREVENTION AND DETECTION 

 
14 The Authority has wide range of mechanisms in place aimed at prevention and detection of 

fraud and corruption.  These are summarised below:  
 
15 Corporate Governance, including: 
 

•  Members Code of Conduct  This contains guidance on personal and prejudicial interests, 
and confidentiality.  Protocols deal with access to documents and meetings, relationships 
between members and officers, gifts and hospitality, Contract Procedure Rules and 
Financial Regulations and Standards. These are contained in the Constitution.  

 
•  Code of Conduct for Council Employees  This covers general standards; financial and 

non-financial interests; relationships with colleagues, managers, councillors, contractors, 
the press and the public; health and safety; care of money and property; political neutrality 
and political restrictions; and responsibilities of Directors and Chief Officers. 

 
•  Financial Regulations and Standards  Financial Regulations provide the framework within 

which the Council manages its finances and safeguards it assets.  They are issued by the 
Council and are binding on all employees. Financial Standards are part of Financial 
Regulations, and define the minimum standards required to provide effective and efficient 
financial arrangements. 

 
•  Contract Procedure Rules  Contract Procedure Rules govern the entering into of all 

contracts and provide detailed rules for the obtaining of quotations and tenders.  Any 
waivers of Contract Procedure Rules are required to be properly authorised and recorded. 

 
•  Council Constitution  The constitution sets out how decisions are made and the procedures 

which are followed to ensure that these are efficient, transparent and accountable to local 
people.  Some of these processes are required by law, while others are a matter for the Council 
to decide. 

 
16 Staff Selection/Screening  The Council’s Recruitment and Selection Procedure (Harrow 

Scheme for Pay and Conditions of Service 1.5) ensures that staff are appointed on merit and 
provides controls to eliminate the appointment of unsuitable persons: 

 
•  Applicants are required to complete an application form and declare any criminal 

convictions that are not spent.  Where appropriate applicants are also required to declare all 
past offences or pending prosecutions and may also be subject to a police check. (See 
Harrow Scheme 1.3) 

•  Applicants are required to produce documentary evidence of any qualifications they claim to 
hold. 

•  Written references are requested for all successful applicants, one of which must be 
obtained from the most recent/relevant employer.  The Council’s fidelity insurance 

36



 15

guarantee requires that applicants for posts with responsibility for money, goods, accounts, 
or computer programming/operation of financial systems must provide satisfactory 
references from all employers during the previous 3 years. (See Harrow Scheme 3.28) 

•  Applicants who are offered appointments are required to provide proof of eligibility to work 
in the UK prior to commencing employment.  

•  New staff are required to provide a National Insurance number which is validated in 
accordance with DSS procedures. 

 
17 Staff Training  The Council’s corporate induction process makes staff aware of the anti-fraud 

and corruption strategy and where to find additional information.  The requirements placed 
upon employees are reinforced through ongoing communication and training mechanisms. 

 
18 Control Systems  Weaknesses in internal control can result in errors or, in more serious 

cases, theft, fraud or corruption.  It is important, therefore, that robust control systems are 
implemented and regularly reviewed.  Managers at all levels are required to operate 
arrangements for planning, implementation, monitoring and review of control systems (see 
Financial Standard 13). 

 
19 Internal Audits  These are undertaken by the Authority’s internal audit unit (Audit and 

Consultancy Services) in accordance with the requirements of the Accounts and Audit 
Regulations 1996 and associated professional guidelines.  Reviews of control systems are 
conducted across all departments of the Council and coverage is determined using an 
objective risk based process.  The reviews provide assurance on the effectiveness of internal 
controls, and alert managers to system weaknesses in order that corrective action can be 
taken to minimise risk.  Ongoing advice on risk management and control improvement is also 
provided.  An annual report on coverage and key findings is submitted to the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee. 

 
20 External Audits  External audits are carried out by Deloitte and Touche in accordance with 

the provisions of the Audit Commission Act 1998, the Accounts and Audit Regulations 1996, 
and the accompanying Code of Audit Practice.  The external auditor undertakes a planned 
programme of work across the Authority, including an annual review of the Authority’s 
arrangements for preventing and detecting fraud and corruption.  The External Auditor 
presents an annual report on coverage and key findings to the Cabinet and to the Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee.  

 
21 Whistleblowing Procedure  The Authority has a whistleblowing policy enabling staff to report 

concerns about a more senior officer, or a Councillor, without the fear of resultant victimisation, 
whilst protecting officers and members from uninformed or vexatious allegations.  Details of 
the procedure can be found in the Harrow Scheme 3.36.  Whistleblowers are also protected by 
the Public Interest Disclosure Act 1998. 

 
22 Complaints Procedure  Departments are responsible for operating arrangements for the 

investigation of complaints.  Where complaints indicate possible fraud or corrupt activities, 
these are dealt with in accordance with the appropriate procedures (See Financial Standard 8, 
Departmental Management Investigation Policies, Disciplinary Procedure.)  

 
23 NFI  As part of the annual external audit process, the Audit Commission requires the Authority 

to participate in the National Fraud Initiative (NFI).  The Authority provides data from its 
computer systems, which is matched with that of other authorities and agencies, to identify 
possible fraud.  Details of matches are returned to the Authority where further internal 
investigations are undertaken to identify and pursue cases of fraud and irregularity. 

 

37



 16

24 LTAF  The London Team Against Fraud (LTAF) is the operational arm of the London 
Committee for Action Against Fraud (LCAAF) and is funded by the London Boroughs.  LTAF 
provides a focal point for the exchange of information on fraudulent activity and produces good 
practice guidelines. 

 
25 Communication Mechanisms  Information on potential fraud is received regularly from a 

variety of sources, including the Audit Commission and LTAF.  Departments are responsible 
for acting upon this information and for sharing any other information which may be of wider 
interest across the Authority.  

 
26 Metropolitan Police Partnership  The Crime and Disorder Act 1998 requires the Metropolitan 

Police Service and other specified bodies to undertake prescribed steps in a crime reduction 
initiative for London.  As a result partnerships have been developed with London local 
authorities, with the aim of identifying areas where increased liaison can reduce levels of 
crime, and enhance the effectiveness of fraud and corruption investigation in the public sector.  
This is achieved through intelligence sharing, the development of partnership protocols, crime 
prevention and training.  

 
27 Independent External Inspection  The Authority is subject to regular inspection by a number 

of external agencies and the Local Ombudsman.  These provide further independent evidence 
on the adequacy of systems and may highlight irregularities for further investigation.  The work 
of the Benefits Fraud Inspectorate is particularly relevant here. 

 
 INVESTIGATION 
 
28 A number of investigative mechanisms are in place to deal with suspected cases of fraud and 

corruption.  These are outlined below. 
 
29 Housing Benefit Investigations  The investigation of suspected housing benefit fraud is 

undertaken by a dedicated housing benefit investigation team within Financial and Exchequer 
Services.  The work of the unit is supported by a comprehensive Prosecution and Penalty 
Policy designed to ensure that fraud is rigorously pursued. 

 
30 Other investigations  The investigation of all other categories of suspected fraud and 

corruption is undertaken by management, in consultation with Audit and Consultancy Services, 
Personnel Services and Legal Services.  Guidance on undertaking these investigations is 
contained within the Disciplinary Procedure (Harrow Scheme 3.02) and Financial Standard 8.  

 
31 Police Liaison and Referral  Where there is evidence that a criminal act has taken place, 

management may seek police advice upon the investigation process and the collection of 
evidence and, on the advice of the Borough Solicitor, pursue a prosecution.  

 
 
 RESTITUTION 
 
32 There are a number of mechanisms in place within the Authority to seek redress in cases of 

fraud and corruption.  These are as follows. 
 
33 Disciplinary Action  The Authority’s Disciplinary Code identifies ‘stealing from the Council, its 

employees or the public’ and ‘criminal offences outside work which have a direct bearing on 
the individual’s employment’ as examples of gross misconduct.  These will normally lead to 
summary dismissal.  

 

38



 17

34 Prosecution Policy  Prosecution is considered in all cases of fraud and corruption, in 
consultation with the Borough Secretary and Solicitor to the Council.  For cases of housing 
benefit fraud a detailed Prosecution and Penalty Policy and Procedure is in place. 

 
35 Recovery of Money and Goods  Management will take all reasonable action to recover any 

money or goods owed to, or the property of, the Authority.  The police are requested to seek 
compensation orders in the criminal courts, and civil action is taken where necessary, to 
recover all costs. 

 
36 Insurance  The Authority regularly reviews corporate risk to ensure that adequate insurance 

provision is available to meet anticipated claims. Managers are responsible for ensuring that 
insurance claims are initiated. (See Financial Standard 12)  

 
 REPORTING AND PUBLICITY 
 
37 Incidents of fraud and corruption are reported through the following mechanisms: 
 

•  Overview and Scrutiny Committee  The Overview and Scrutiny Committee considers the 
circumstances of all significant irregularities, and can report on, and make 
recommendations to, the Cabinet or other appropriate body.  Accordingly, the Chief Internal 
Auditor reports individual cases on a six-monthly basis, with an annual report summarising 
volumes and values and identifying trends.  Similarly the Head of Financial and Exchequer 
Services submits six-monthly reports to the Committee on the activities of the Housing 
Benefits fraud team. 

 
•  Audit Commission  The Authority reports annually to the Audit Commission on identified 

cases of fraud and corruption. 
 

Publicity  Where appropriate, the Authority will publicise actions taken to identify fraud and 
corruption, and the outcomes of prosecutions. 

39



 18

Annex 3  DRAFT 
 
 
GENERAL PURPOSES AND LICENSING COMMITTEE 

 
The powers and the duties of the General Purposes and Licensing Committee are: 

 
(a) to consider all matters which the Local Authorities (Functions and 

Responsibilities)(England) Regulations 2000 and 2001 listed by Committee in the 
Schedule to this document, which are required not to be the responsibility of the 
Executive, save for those matters delegated to other Committees of the Council; 

 
(b) to carry out the functions under any relevant statutory provision within the meaning of 

Part I (Health, safety and welfare in connection with work, and control of dangerous 
substances) of the Health and Safety at Work Act 1974, to the extent that those functions 
are discharged otherwise than in the authority’s capacity as an employer; 

 
(c) To  keep under review and to determine the arrangements for the holding of elections and 

any referendums within the Borough and to initiate or respond to any proposals to the 
change of ward, constituency or Borough boundaries; 

 
(d) The determination of applications under the Local Government Superannuation 

Regulations and the Teachers’ Superannuation Regulations and the determination of 
applications under the Council’s Personal Injury Allowance Scheme. 

 
(e) to determine all matters and duties on the authority imposed by legislation, regulations 

orders, codes, and similar provisions for: 
 

•  The supply of alcohol (whether or not by sale) 
•  The control of entertainment, including but not exclusively; music, dancing, film, sports, 

plays, acting, hypnosis. 
•  The opening of premises for prescribed activities. 
•  Food safety and control. 
•  Animal health, welfare, safety and control. 
•  Gaming, betting, lotteries and related amusements 
•  Crime and disorder issues related to the above duties. 

 
LICENSING PANEL 
  
(i) To determine matters and to make Orders in respect of: 
 
•  Licenses, permits, notices, registrations and certificates; 
•  Rights of way, footpaths and bridleways and the enjoyment of the highway; 
•  Street naming and numbering; 
•  Markets and fairs and other street trading; 
•  Car park orders and variations; 
•  Registration of common land, town greens and variations of rights of common; 

 
Where objections or statutory representations have been received and require determination. 

 
(ii) To determine matters and to make Orders in respect of: 

 

40



 19

•  Safety certificates for sports grounds; 
•  Matters regarding film classification; 
•  Rules and Regulations established by the authority; 
•  Fees issues within the terms of reference of the sub-committee; 
•  Applications under Part II and Schedule 3 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions 

Act 1982) as amended from time to time. 
 
(iii) To determine waivers and variations on matters determined by the General Purposes and 

Licensing Committee, Cabinet or Council. 
 
(iv) Without prejudice to the generality of the above sections, in the case of alcohol control 

provisions in the Licensing Act 2003 as might be amended, and related legislation, 
regulations, orders, guidance, etc, to determine the following matters: 

 
! Applications for personal licences where: 
! Representations have been made, but remain unresolved. 
! Applicants have relevant unspent convictions. 
! Matters relating to the licensing, certification and authorisation at premises where: 
! Representations have been made to an application, but remain unresolved. 
! There is an unresolved police representation to an application to vary a designated 

personal licence holder, or to the transfer of a premises licence. 
! There is an unresolved police representation to the application for an interim authority, 

or to a Temporary Event Notice. 
! An application is made for the review of a premises licence or club premises 

certificate. 
! Matters of an exceptional nature that in the officer’s opinion justify consideration by 

the Licensing Panel. 
 
 

41



 20

Annex 4 – Committee Procedure Rules -  
 

Information on the rights of Applicants and Objectors to speak in relation to 
Applications at the Development Control Committee 

 
17.1 This procedure applies only to the following applications which are to be determined by the 

Committee: 
 

•  applications for planning permission which are being recommended for grant or approval 
by the Chief Planning Officer.   

•  Applications for prior approval of the siting and appearance of telecommunications 
development where the Chief Planning Officer is recommending that prior approval be not 
required OR that prior approval be required and granted. 

 
The Rule does not apply to applications where the recommendation of the Chief Planning Officer 
is to refuse planning permission or to refuse prior approval of details of siting and appearance. 
 
17.2 The applicant may only make representations after any objector has addressed the 

Committee (i.e. if there is no objector to an application the applicant will not be permitted to 
speak)  

 
17.3 No later than 5.00pm on the working day before the meeting, objectors should give notice to 

the Borough Solicitor of their wish to speak at the Committee. 
 
17.4 Subject to 17.5, only one objector will be permitted to address the Development Control 

Committee in respect of each relevant application, and any group of objectors should 
therefore nominate a spokesperson.  

 
17.5 In exceptional circumstances, the Development Control Committee may by motion agree to 

allow a maximum of two objectors to address the Committee. 
 
17.6 Objectors and applicants may speak for a maximum of three minutes each. Where the 

Committee allows two objectors to address them  under Rule 17.5, each objector may 
speak for a maximum of three minutes. In exceptional circumstances concerning significant 
applications the Development Control Committee may agree to increase the length of time 
for representations to a maximum of five minutes each. 

 
17.7 Where an application is recommended for refusal by the Chief Planning Officer but the 

Committee is minded to grant permission, the application will be deferred to the next 
meeting of the Committee. This will enable re-notification to take place and give an 
opportunity for objectors to the application to attend the subsequent meeting and make 
representations. 

 
17.8 The deputation procedure referred to in Rule 16 applies to all other business on the 

Development Control Committee agenda. 

42



 21

 
Annex 5 – Officer Employment Rules 

 
Political Appointments under section 9 of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 
 
The current paragraph 5(b) on page 4H-2 will be amended to read as follows: 
 
5. (b) Assistants to political groups.  
 
A political assistant may be appointed to a post  which: 
 
! Is made for the purpose of providing assistance to Council Members of a political group in their 

role as members of the authority; 
! Is made at or below the maximum salary prescribed in the relevant Regulations in force at the 

time: 
! Is for a term fixed by reference to the relevant regulations in force at the time; 
! Is one of no more than three posts the Council have decided to create for the purposes of 

section 9 of the Act;  
! Is at the selection of the political group to whom the post has been appointed. 

43



 22

 
 

Annex 6 
 

Statutory Officer powers 
 
Head of Paid Service 
 
 
Function 
 

 
Source of function 

 
Responsibility for the manner in which the   
discharge of the Council’s functions is co-
ordinated 
 
 

 
Section 4 Local Government and Housing 
Act 1989 

 
Responsibility for the number and grades of 
staff, their organisation and appointment and 
management of the authority’s staff 

 
Section 4 Local Government and Housing 
Act 1989 

 
 
Section 151 Officer 
 
 
Function 
 

 
Source of Function 

 
Responsibility for the proper administration of 
the financial affairs of the authority 
 

 
S151 Local Government Act 1972, Section 
112 Local Government Finance Act 1988 (as 
amended) and Section 6 of the Local 
Government and Housing Act 1989 
 

 
Report on a decision, course of action or item 
of account  which results or could result in  
unlawful expenditure  
 

 
Section 114 Local Government Finance Act 
1988 (as amended) 

 
Report on the robustness of the authority’s  
budget estimates and adequacy of proposed 
financial reserves 
 

 
Section 25 Local Government Act 2003 

 
If the controlled reserve appears inadequate, 
to report to the authority on the reasons for 
the situation and the action she considers 
appropriate 
 

 
Section 27 Local Government Act 2003 

 
 
 
 

44



 23

Monitoring Officer 
 
Function 

 
Source of Function 

 
Report on contravention or likely 
contravention of any enactment or rule of 
law. 
 

 
Section 5 Local Government and Housing 
Act 1989. 
 

 
Report on any maladministration or  
injustice where Ombudsman has carried  
out an investigation. 
 

 
Section 5 Local Government and Housing 
Act 1989. 
 

 
Appointment of Deputy Monitoring Officer. 
 

 
Section 5 Local Government and Housing 
Act 1989. 
 

 
Report on resources needed to undertake  
Monitoring Officer functions. 

 
Section 5 Local Government and Housing 
Act 1989. 
 

 
Investigate misconduct in compliance with 
Regulations and directions of Ethical  
Standards Officers (ESO). 
 

 
Regulations under Section 66(1) and 66(6) 
Local Government Act 2000. Direction 
from ESO in individual cases. 
 

 
Establish and maintain registers of  
member’s interests and gifts and  
hospitality. 
 

 
Section 81 Local Government Act 2000 
and Members’ Code of Conduct. 
 

 
Advice to Members on interpretation of the 
Code. 
 

 
Members’ Code of Conduct  
 
 

 
Key role in framework for local  
determination of complaints. Advice to  
Members, officers and the public on the  
operation of the Code and how alleged  
breaches should be investigated. 
 

 
Statutory guidance para. 8.20  
Proposed Regulations under section 66 of 
the LGA 2000 (awaited) 
 
 

 
Liaison with Standards Board for England  
and Ethical Standards Officers. 
 

 
Regulations under sections 54(4), 57(3) 
and 66 of the LGA 2000. 
 

 
Compensation or remedy for  
maladministration. 
 

 
S.92 Local Government Act 2000. 
 

 
Advice on vires issues, maladministration,  
financial impropriety, probity, policy  
framework and budget issues to all  
members. 

 
ODPM guidance. 
 

45



 24

 
 
 
 
Chief Education Officer 
 
 
Function 
 

 
Source of Function 

 
All education functions 
 

 
Section 532 Education Act 1996 

 
 
Social Services Officer 
 
 
 
Function 
 

 
Source of function 

 
All social services functions 
 

 
Section 6 Local Authority Social Services Act 
1970 (as amended) 
 

 
 

46



 25

Annex 7 
 

Deputation Procedure for Committees  
 

16.1 Subject to Rule 17 any Committee or sub-committee of the Council may 
receive a deputation on any matter appearing on the relevant agenda. 

 
16.2 Requests for deputations must be in writing and supported by the signatures   

of at least 10 residents or representatives of local organisations or businesses. 
The signatories must clearly state their names and addresses/qualifying 
business address. The request must explain why a deputation is required. 

 
16.3 The request must be given to the Borough Solicitor at least two clear working 

days before the day of the meeting, although this requirement can be waived 
by the Committee or sub-committee on the grounds of urgency. 

 
16.4 The deputation to the meeting must consist of not more than four people. 

Those nominated to speak should also be signatories to the original written 
request to make a deputation.  All four people may speak but the total length of 
the speeches from the deputation must not exceed 10 minutes. 

 
16.5 The time allowed for questioning of the deputation by Members will be 10 

minutes. 
 
16.6 The deputation shall be heard immediately before the relevant item on the 

agenda.  The Chair has complete discretion to move any items that are subject 
to a deputation forward on the agenda. 

 
16.7 Committees shall receive no more than two deputations per meeting. 
 
16.8 No deputation shall appear before a Committee or sub-committee within 6 

months after a deputation has appeared before it on the same or a similar 
subject. 

 
16.9 Members of the Council, co-optees and advisors shall not be signatories to, 

lead or form part of any deputation. 
 
16.10 Members of staff may lead or join deputations only in their capacity as local 

electors and on issues other than those affecting their employment with the 
Council. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
council 13-05-04(Annual)constit changes report march 04 

47



48

This page is intentionally left blank


